
 
Agenda 

 
Town of Boiling Springs Board of Commissioners 

 
November 1, 2011 



It is the desire of the Board to allow all citizens an opportunity to speak and to conduct business in an open, professional, 
and productive manner.  Persons not specifically listed on the agenda but wishing to speak must register with the Town Clerk 
prior to the start of the meeting.  These persons will be recognized by the Mayor during the “Recognition of Citizens Present” 
portion of the meeting.  A maximum of three (3) minutes will be allowed unless otherwise approved by a majority of the Board.  
Groups are urged to choose one spokesperson.  If you require additional time, you may ask to be placed on the agenda for 
the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board.  This policy was adopted in an effort to allow the Board members 
adequate notice of business to come before it as well as time to familiarize themselves with an issue.  

 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
November 1, 2011 
7 p.m., Town Hall 

 
 
1. Call to Order – Max J. Hamrick, Mayor       - 

 
 

2. Approval of Minutes          3 
October 4, 2011 Regular Meeting 

 
 
3. Recognition of Citizens Present 

 
 
 

4. New Business           5 
− Economic Infrastructure Grant Program Documents 
− Resolution Approving Financing Terms – Solid Waste Vehicle 
− Budget Ordinance Amendment – Street Resurfacing 
− Ruby Hunt YMCA Presentation 

 
 
5. Staff Reports           16 

 
 
 

6. Commissioners’ Reports/Comments        17 
 
 
 

7. Mayor’s Report/Comments         17 

Town of Boiling Springs 

P.O. BOX 1014 
BOILING SPRINGS, NC 28017 

Telephone 704-434-2357 
Fax 704-434-2358 

www.boilingspringsnc.net 



 
 

      
     The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs met October 4, 2011 at the Boiling Springs 
Town Hall.  Present were: Mayor Max J. Hamrick; Commissioners William Elliott, Darlene Gravett, James 
Beason, John Glenn, and Cliff Hamrick.  Town Attorney John Schweppe, III was also present.  Staff 
members present: Town Manager Zach Trogdon, Town Clerk Kimberly Greene, Finance Officer Rhonda 
Allen, Public Works Director Mike Gibert, and Chief Randy Page. 
                                                                              
    Others Present:   
  
AGENDA ITEM I 
Call to Order – Max J. Hamrick, Mayor     
       
AGENDA ITEM II 
Recognition of Citizens Present     
  
AGENDA ITEM III 
Approval of Minutes 
     A correction was made to the September 6, 2011 regular meeting minutes “Mr. Gibert and Mr. Trogdon 
discussed separate residential water connections and separate connections per lot.  The Board agreed the 
policies be amended and returned to the Board for approval.” listed under Agenda Item V. Staff Reports 
Mike Gibert, Public Works Director.  Commissioner Gravett made the motion to approve minutes of the 
September 6, 2011 regular meeting with this correction, the September 6, 2011 closed session, and the 
September 13, 2011 called meeting as previously mailed.  Commissioner Beason seconded and the vote 
was unanimous.  
  
AGENDA ITEM IV 
New Business  
Sidewalk at North Main and East College 
     Mr. Trogdon discussed extending the sidewalk along N. Main Street to the new CVS site at the 
intersection of N.  Main Street and E. College Avenue.  The cost associated with the construction would not 
require formal or informal bidding by the Town. The Board agreed to proceed with the project.  
  
Financing Proposals – Solid Waste Vehicle 
     Mr. Trogdon discussed the financing proposals received for the purchase of a solid waste vehicle which 
is scheduled for delivery by early November 2011.  Rhonda Allen reviewed the current debt-service 
payment schedule.  The Board agreed to postpone action until the November 1, 2011 monthly meeting.     
 
     Mr. Trogdon presented the Board a Resolution Authorizing Sale of Surplus Personal Property for the 
following items: 
 
  2000 Ford F-350 Dump Truck – VIN# 1FDWF37F9YEA92238 
  2001 Dodge Ram 1500 Pickup Truck – VIN# 1B7HC16Y31S699711 
 
     Commissioner Elliott made the motion to approve the Resolution Authorizing the Sale of Surplus 
Personal Property.  Commissioner Beason seconded and the vote was unanimous.  A copy of the 
Resolution is on file in the office of the Clerk. 
 
AGENDA ITEM V 
Staff Reports 
Kimberly Greene, Town Clerk, reported the following: 
     The Christmas Parade will be held on November 27, 2011 at 3:00 p.m.  The Clerk also reported it was 
time to choose someone to serve as the Grand Marshal.  
 
Rhonda Allen, Finance Officer, reported the following: 
     Rhonda Allen reported the auditor recommended the Town develop a Spending Policy as suggested by  
 
 

3



 
 
the LGC (Local Government Commission) and add to the Cash Management Policy.  Ms. Allen also 
discussed incorporating a Fund Balance Policy to establish the minimum level at which the fund balance is 
to be maintained. The minimum required by the LGC is 8% of the prior year’s expenditures.   
 
Randy Page, Police Chief, reported the following:  
     The Chief reported on the success of the September 16th & 17th Centennial Celebration Events.  He 
commended the Officers and the Public Works Department for their hard work.     
 
Mike Gibert, Public Works Director, reported the following:      
     Wastewater Department:  Mr. Gibert reported on a rain event in September that resulted in hauling only 
four loads from the Lyman Street Pump Station. The department continues to seek infiltration areas.  The 
flow meter is still being utilized and they also plan to smoke test sewer lines again.   
 
Zach Trogdon, Town Manager, reported the following: 
     Commissioner Glenn made the motion to reappoint Kim Duren and Paul Foster to the Tourism and 
Development Authority with terms expiring 10/31/2014.  Commissioner Hamrick seconded and the vote 
was unanimous.   
     The Planning and Zoning Board currently has two vacant ETJ seats. 
     Mr. Trogdon reported resurfacing work is scheduled to begin in the Southglenn and Highland Pines 
Subdivisions.  Additional work is required prior to repaving Southglenn which will cost an additional 
$17,000.  The Board authorized Mr. Trogdon to proceed.         
     Mr. Trogdon reported the City of Shelby is beginning a recycling project.  It was agreed that Boiling 
Springs’ residents be surveyed, online and printed, about their interest in starting a recycling program.   
     The Board agreed to have a dinner for Centennial Committee members to thank them so they will know 
their hard work this year is appreciated.  They spent endless hours planning and executing the celebration 
events.  
  
 AGENDA ITEM VI 
Commissioner’s Report/Comments  
Commissioner Darlene Gravett reported on the following:      
     Commissioner Gravett was contacted about donating funds by the Cleveland County Sports 
Commission.  
 
Commissioner John Glenn reported on the following:           
     Commissioner Glenn expressed his concern over complaints received regarding the YMCA’s 
management of recreation for Boiling Springs.  
     Commissioner Glenn stated the Centennial Celebration Festival was wonderful with an outstanding 
fireworks show as the grand finale.   
     The Board agreed to ask the Centennial Steering Committee about holding a workable yearly event.        
 
AGENDA ITEM VII 
Mayor’s Report/Comments  
     There being no further business to come before the Board, Mayor Hamrick declared the meeting 
adjourned at 8:20 pm.  

  
Max J. Hamrick, Mayor 
  
  

  
Kimberly Greene, Town Clerk  

  
 
 
 

Town Board 
Minutes 

  October 4, 2011 
                                                                             Page 2 

4



Meeting Date:  November 1, 2011 
Subject:  New Business 
 
 

- Economic Infrastructure Grant Program Documents 
 
The Town is the applicant on two grants to acquire funding for the installation of a sewer line 
from B&W Fiberglass, a local industry which is expanding its operations.  The Town was 
notified on October 12, 2011 that it was awarded a $225,000 CDBG economic development grant 
for the project.  A grant announced earlier from the NC Rural Center is providing $137,750 
towards the project.  Enclosed are a couple of documents that must be executed to finalize the 
CDBG award, a Grant Agreement (p.6) and Funding Approval (p. 9) and a resolution authorizing 
signatories for grant funds (p. 10).   
 
The Town also needs to formally adopt a project budget ordinance now that all of the funding 
amounts are known (p. 11).   
 

 
- Resolution Approving Financing Terms – Solid Waste Vehicle (p. 13) 

 
BB&T proposed the best terms for financing a new solid waste vehicle.  The amount to be 
financed is $141,116.  The terms are either 1.73% for 4 years or 1.88% for 5 years.  The terms are 
good for 45 days from October 3, 2011, which is November 18, 2011.  I have sent you an 
amortization schedule under separate cover.   
 
The truck is scheduled to be delivered 270 days from March 2, 2011, which is November 16, 
2011.    
 
 

- Budget Ordinance Amendment – Street Resurfacing (p. 15) 
 

The Town recently completed a resurfacing project at a cost of $155,500.  This was more than 
was included in the appropriate Contracted Services budget and some funds need to be 
appropriated from reserves.  It was known that funds would have to be transferred from Powell 
Bill reserves, but staff was not sure of the amount needed when the Board last met. 

 
 

- Ruby Hunt YMCA Presentation 
 

Daniel Woodard, Executive Director of the Y, will be on hand to tell the Board about recent 
activities at the Y and about the way programs are performing. 

 
 
Action Taken/Notes: 

5



6



7



8



9



 
 
 

 
 

Resolution Authorizing Signatories for  
Requisition of CDBG Funds 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Boiling Springs has received funding from the North Carolina 
Department of Commerce under the Community Development Block Grant Program, and;   
 
 

WHEREAS, the Town is required to authorize certain officials as signatories for Requisition 
of CDBG Funds forms;  
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS: 

 
That the following officials are authorized to sign Requisition of CDBG Funds forms:  
Mayor, Town Manager, Finance Officer, and Town Clerk 

 
 
Adopted this 1st day of November, 2011. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
       Max Hamrick, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________ 
       Kim Greene, Clerk 

10



11



12



Town of Boiling Springs 

P.O. BOX 1014 
BOILING SPRINGS, NC 28017 

Telephone 704-434-2357 
Fax 704-434-2358 

www.boilingspringsnc.net 
 
 

Resolution Approving Financing Terms  

WHEREAS, the Town of Boiling Springs ("Town") has previously determined to 
undertake a project for a new solid waste collection vehicle (the "Project"), and has now 
presented a proposal for the financing of such Project, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS: 

 
1. The Town hereby determines to finance the Project through Branch Banking and Trust 

Company ("BB&T"), in accordance with the proposal dated October 3, 2011.  The 
amount financed shall not exceed $141,116.00, the annual interest rate (in the absence of 
default or change in tax status) shall not exceed 1.88%, and the financing term shall not 
exceed five (5) years from closing. 
 

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the 
"Financing Documents") shall be consistent with the foregoing terms.  All officers and 
employees of the Town are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any 
Financing Documents, and to take all such further action as they may consider necessary 
or desirable, to carry out the financing of the Project as contemplated by the proposal and 
this resolution.  The Financing Documents shall include a Financing Agreement and 
Deed of Trust and a Project Fund Agreement as BB&T may request. 

 
3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the 

Financing Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents 
have been completed to such officer's satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to 
approve changes to any Financing Documents previously signed by Town officers or 
employees, provided that such changes shall not substantially alter the intent of such 
documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms executed by such 
officers. The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance Officer 
shall approve, with the Finance Officer's release of any Financing Document for delivery 
constituting conclusive evidence of such officer's final approval of the Document's final 
form. 

 
4. The Town shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which shall 

cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross income for 
federal income tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. 
The Town hereby designates its obligations to make principal and interest payments 
under the Financing Documents as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purpose of 
Internal Revenue Code Section 265(b)(3). 

 

13



5. The Town intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration of the Town's 
official intent to reimburse expenditures for the project that is to be financed from the 
proceeds of the BB&T financing described above. The Town intends that funds that have 
been advanced, or that may be advanced, from the Town's general fund or any other 
Town fund related to the project, for project costs may be reimbursed from the financing 
proceeds. 

 
6. All prior actions of Town officers in furtherance of the purposes of this resolution are 

hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. All other resolutions (or Towns thereof) in 
conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict. This 
resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
 
 
Adopted this 1st day of November, 2011. 

 

 

      _____________________________   
       Max Hamrick, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Kim Greene, Clerk 

 

14



TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS  
BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT #111101.1 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs adopted a budget 
ordinance on June 28, 2011 which established revenues and authorized expenditures for fiscal year 2011-
2012; and  
 

WHEREAS, since the time of the adoption of said ordinance, it has become necessary to make 
certain changes in the Town’s budget to allocate funds for the resurfacing of Town streets in the Highland 
Pines and Southglenn subdivisions; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the 

Town of Boiling Springs that the budget ordinance as adopted on June 28, 2011 be and is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 

Section 1. Revenues  
Increase 

Transfer from Powell Bill Reserve $100,000 
 

 
Section 2. Expenditures 

Increase 
Contracted Services $100,000 

 
 
 

This the 1st day of November, 2011. 
 
 

 
 
                                

 ______________________________                  
Max J. Hamrick, Mayor   

     
 
                                                                                                

        
  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________                                                                    
Kim Greene, Town Clerk 

15



Meeting Date:  November 1, 2011 
Subject:  Staff Reports 
 
 
  

Police 
 
 

 
 
Public Works 
 
 
 
 
Finance 

 
− 1st quarter FY 2011-12 financials 

 
 
 
Town Clerk 
 

− Grand Marshal(s) 
 
 
 
Town Attorney 

 
  
 

 
 
Town Manager 

 
− ETJ P&Z appointment 
− Fire and Rescue appointments 
− CAGO – December 1st 6:30  

 
 
 

16



Meeting Date:  November 1, 2011 
Subject:  Commissioners’ Reports 
 
 
 Commissioner Gravett 
 
 
 
 

Commissioner Elliott 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Beason 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Glenn 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner C. Hamrick 
 

 
  
 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2011 
Subject:  Mayor’s Report 

17




